
 

Environmental Advisory                                Lower Saucon Township                                      December 9, 2014 

Council                                                                          Minutes                                                                7:00 PM 
 

 

I. OPENING 

A. CALL TO ORDER:  The Environmental Advisory Council meeting of Lower Saucon Township 

was called to order on Tuesday, December 9, 2014, 2014 at 7:02 P.M. at 3700 Old Philadelphia 

Pike, Bethlehem, PA, with Sandra Yerger, Chairman, presiding.   

B. ROLL CALL:  Members:  Sandra Yerger, Chairman; Tom Maxfield, Vice Chair; Allan Johnson 

(arrived at 7:12 pm); Ted Beardsley, Laura Ray (arrived at 7:07 pm), Hazem Hijazi; Absent:  Dru 

Germanoski.   Associate Members:  Thomas Carocci,  Sarah Stanlick and Michael Boyle; Absent:  

Glenn Kaye.  Jr. Council Member:  Kyle Bambu.  Hellertown Liaison:   Terry Boos. 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

D. ANNOUNCEMENT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF APPLICABLE) - None 
 

II. OPEN SPACE SUB-COMMITTEE 

A. PROPERTY UPDATES 
Mr. Beardsley had a property update on Dano Guerreri.  The Open Space Sub-Committee will be 

doing a site inspection on Saturday, December 20
th
.   Also, Mr. Marson is going to see Terry 

Clemons on December 19
th
. 

 

III. NEW BUSINESS 

A. MS-4 REGULATIONS FOR WATERSHEDS AND WATER WAYS 

Mrs. Yerger said last month this was on the agenda and we were sort of quasi charged with coming 

up with some education and outreach material for the residents of the Township with regard to the 

MS-4 regulations, which are stormwater regulations.  She knew that Berks County had did a great 

job with their County website on providing information with about 30 links to different ordinances, 

stormwater management, and things like that.  One of the recommendations from Hanover was 

getting something up on our website and in the newsletter, so this would be one of the first steps 

for education and what the citizens can do to help comply with MS-4 standards.  The flyer she has 

is the top seven things you can do for stormwater management and water quality and it’s easy for 

people to understand and make them aware of these things.  She asked Diane to give the documents 

to Jack so he can take a look at them and put them on the website.  We started the process, and if 

anyone else has anything else, bring it in and we can pass it on to the Township staff.  Mr. 

Maxfield said he’d like the riparian flyer on the Township website also.   
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to recommend to Council that the three water related flyers and brochures 

that Sandy provided to the EAC be put on the Township website as well as the old riparian 

flyer that the EAC did some time ago. 

SECOND BY: Ms. Ray 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 (Mr. Germanoski & Mr. Johnson – Absent) 
 

B. NAMES FOR WOODLAND HILL GOLF COURSE PROPERTY 

Mrs. Yerger said we have acquired Woodland Hills, which was once a golf course and we don’t 

want to call it a golf course anymore.  Jack thought because it’s a natural area and a passive area 

with trails, natural features, it would be appropriate for us to start thinking what we want to call 

this.  Jack gave us some suggestions.  After considerable discussion on each of the suggestions, the 

EAC decided on Woodland Hills Preserve because everyone knows where Woodland Hills is. 
 

MOTION BY: Mrs. Yerger moved to recommend to Council that the EAC suggests the name for the 

Woodland Hills Golf Course property to be called Woodland Hills Preserve. 

SECOND BY: Ms. Ray 

ROLL CALL: 6-0 (Mr. Germanoski – Absent) 
 

IV. DEVELOPER ITEMS 

A. AT THE HELM MAJOR - #MAJ 01-14 – 2650 REDINGTON ROAD 

Mrs. Yerger said this went before the P/C and there were some changes recommended.  As part of 

that, it was because of the soils that were on this property that infiltration was really not a good 



Environmental Advisory Council 

December 9, 2014 
 

Page 2 of 3 

option for this particular site.  Infiltration is the first thing you would like to do.  This has a lot of 

carbonate geology on it so infiltration is not necessarily the best option in something that’s prone 

for sinkholes.  There were some alternations for a detention basin to be added, which was a major 

change. 

 

Mr. Maxfield said the P/C mentioned about the skinny piece of land that was connected to the back 

and they were wondering why a couple of pieces weren’t merged.  Because of the conservation of 

areas of the property, this will be preserved so no building can occur there.  Where someone might 

call it a flag lot, which goes against what our ordinance says, it’s not really a buildable lot and it 

will be connected to the rest of the preserved area as well.  The P/C elected not to recommend 

merging, but to accept it the way it is.  The pipeline people said the pipeline will not be going 

through this property.  It will be on the other side of the street. 

 

Ms. Ray said she noticed one thing in the letter from Art Swallow in the comments, they indicate 

that incompatible land uses, agricultural and residential, she’s thinking why is that incompatible 

land uses, then it refers they are going to do a planting to separate them, so she’s imaging that’s 

behind the lots, and then they are putting in forsythia.  That’s non-native, invasive, and why is it 

incompatible land uses between the two?  Mr. Maxfield said we can make the recommendation 

against forsythia.  Ms. Ray said why do they have to separate the two?  Mr. Maxfield said part of 

the farm is going to be covered under the Farm Protection Act and those houses will not be, so if 

they sell the house to someone who says they don’t like the manure smell, then you do have an 

incompatible use.  The farm will be protected.  It’s simply a zoning issue.  Mrs. Yerger said it says 

“the border plant Forsythia is shown on sheets 2 and 3 of 14”.  Mr. Maxfield said good catch. 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved that the EAC recommends to Council that the preliminary plan for “At 

the Helm” be approved with the following condition, that Forsythia be replaced with a native 

plant to the satisfaction of the Township Planner as a buffer planting. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Beardsley 

ROLL CALL: 6-0 (Mr. Germanoski – Absent) 

 

V. UPDATES/REPORTS 
Mrs. Yerger said there will be a forum held at Palisades High School on the PennEast pipeline on January 

5, 2015.   There is also a meeting for Lower Saucon Township residents at Leithsville Banquet Hall on 

December 16
th
 by Food and Water Watch at 6:30 pm.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said he met with Council and staff with representatives of PennEast Pipeline.  They were 

very open and answered every question they had.  There was a lot misinformation floating out there that 

PennEast was willing to correct.  They said you can farm right on top of the line.  Someone at the last 

Council meeting said the heat from the line may alter the soil and make it not great for planting.  There’s 

also another meeting where a farmer said a gas line was going through his property and he hardly ever 

noticed it.  Their biggest recommendation was people talk to them and let them know conditions on your 

property.  The worst thing to do is close the door as that will trigger the eminent domain.  They are trying 

very hard not to use it at all.  They’d rather establish a relationship with people that will go on for 30 – 40 

years.   They are working off the US GS maps and they do not have everything on them.  PennEast told 

them about the technology of boring under the rivers and streams.  They will not restore woodlands, but 

have no problem with people planting trees outside of the final easement.  They are not looking to acquire 

125’ easement for the whole maintenance; they are just looking to maintain the 40’-50’.  They said 80% of 

the gas will be used domestically.  They proposed a lateral to the old Coke Works site and had a possible 

user, which was Calpine.  The rest of the gas will go to NJ and be used there.  Dru had asked why they 

don’t go along the roads.  They said the way the pipeline is installed, it’s not like some other utilities where 

you can lay it in and close it up.  Long sections are laid in at one time, there is a maintenance easement on 

the side of it, and if they went to close to the roads, they’d be tying up traffic for a long time.  A question 

was asked about co-locating. PennEast had already approached Columbia Gas and they said no, we don’t 

want them in their line. They may co-locate with a power line and it’s a very small area.  The message was 

if this thing is coming through, we want the best deal for our residents that we can get.  The best way to 



Environmental Advisory Council 

December 9, 2014 
 

Page 3 of 3 

approach it is to talk, talk, talk.  PennEast will continue to talk with us until the final line is planned out, 

sometime in 2016.  Hopefully everyone will negotiate and talk with them before that time.  It would be 

good if you have property to get an attorney.  Charles Elliot, our Environmental Solicitor at the Township 

has a website where you can find all sorts of legal documents that pertain to the pipeline.  He asked about a 

gas grid and they said there was not anything like that.  Ms. Stanlick asked about impact fees.  Mr. 

Maxfield said someone told them they were illegal in PA.  Mrs. Yerger said they are opening a fund and 

giving municipalities grants to offset impacts, but it’s only $5,000.00.  Mr. Maxfield said if 80% is being 

used domestically, how can they guarantee someone at the end isn’t shipping it overseas. They said they 

guarantee it goes to this place domestically and that’s it.  Mr. Maxfield feels for the people in Williams 

Township as it’s cutting right through their land.   

 

Mr. Carocci said he asked why they couldn’t get some money for this like tipping fees.  The casino is based 

on revenue and use.  Mr. Maxfield said he did ask about tipping fees and he thinks there’s something in PA 

where they don’t have to pay tipping fees.  It is interstate commerce.  Mr. Carocci said we should be talking 

to our state legislatures about changing the law.  They changed the law about taking 25% of our open space 

money for maintenance. 

 

Mrs. Yerger said the meeting at Palisades, one of the representatives worked with the pipeline people in NJ 

and they were actually were able to negotiate as it went through the County Park to less than the 50’.  They 

were able to reduce the impacts of the pipeline, not stop the pipeline.   

 

Mr. Johnson went to a meeting and a lot of his questions were answered.  He said there will probably be a 

maintenance facility at Redington Road, which could be about half an acre to an acre with a fence around it 

and an access road.  Mr. Johnson explained how they drill and go under rivers.  He said it seems like they 

are going to build that lateral.  Mr. Maxfield said the lateral is a 24” line and the main is 36”.  Their 

prediction is Calpine will be using a lot of gas and they want to pick up other users, including UGI. 
 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER 11, 2014 MINUTES 
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of the November 11, 2014 minutes. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Hijazi 

ROLL CALL: 6-0 (Mr. Germanoski – Absent) 

 

VII. OLD/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS - None 
 

VIII. TERRY BOOS – HELLERTOWN REPRESENTATIVE – No report. 
  

IX. NON-AGENDA ITEMS/PUBLIC COMMENT 

 Mr. Maxfield said on Applebutter Road near the sewer disposal plant, there’s a new guy there who 

has an auto shop and he parks junk cars within feet of the Saucon Creek.  He thought that 

Bethlehem should be more wary on this as it floods and it can pick up all kinds of cars, stuff that 

comes out of the fuel.  He’d like to ask Council to address a letter to the City of Bethlehem and 

address the riparian.  Mr. Hijazi said has anyone approached him and advised him of this?   He said 

he would be willing to go and talk to him and Mr. Maxfield said he will go along with Mr. Hijazi 

and report back in January. 
 

X. ADJOURNMENT 
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for adjournment.  The time was 8:10 P.M. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Hijazi 

ROLL CALL: 6-0 (Mr. Germanoski – Absent) 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Sandra Yerger, Chair  


